
Updated 12/19/22 

City of Rockaway Beach 
Planning Commission Meeting Agenda        
 

Date:   December 15th, 2022  

Time:   4:30 P.M. 

Location:  Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 - Civic Facility  

 
JOIN ZOOM MEETING 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81335648076?pwd=eG8weGFuWDlMMndSQ0JxdWNaZ3kwQT09  

MEETING ID: 813 3564 8076  PASSCODE: 460265 +1 253 215 8782  US (TACOMA) 

 

CALL TO ORDER – Bill Hassell, Chair at 4:31 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester: Present 

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Present 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Absent 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Present 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Present 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester : Present 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Present 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Present 

Position  - Mary McGinnis: City Council Liaison                                   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. November 17th, 2022  - Umholtz made a motion to approve minutes as is, seconded by Johnson, 

Motion Carried. 
Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Motion 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: 2nd  

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Absent 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Approve 

Position #2 - Stephanie Winchester : Approve 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

CITIZEN CONCERNS, COORESPONDENCE AND COMMENTS - None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Determine date & time of Lake Lytle Park Open House – Fregonese suggested February and have 

on a Planning commission date, suggested 2/9th or 2/23rd.   Date decided 2/22/23 at 6:00 p.m.  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

1. Presentation and Review of Proposal for Buildable Land Inventory – 3J Consulting   - 

Fregonese discussed the outline and the scope of work plan. The Planning Commission 

PAGE 2

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81335648076?pwd=eG8weGFuWDlMMndSQ0JxdWNaZ3kwQT09


Updated 12/19/22 

would be the advisory committee for the project. Discussion about process, grants, timeline, 

and how land is classified, short term rentals etc.  

Fregonese suggested to make a motion to present the project to City Council to approve – 

Woida made a motion to present to City Council, Seconded by Umholtz, Motion Carried.  
Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Motion 

Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: 2nd  

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Absent 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra  Umholtz: Approve 

Position #2 - Stehpanie  Winchester : Approve 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

2. Set time of meetings. – Discussion about timing. Johnson asked if could put something on 

website about feedback from public on time. Umholtz asked if some meetings based on 

agenda could be done later. Decision to keep meetings as is at 4:30 p.m.  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS & CONCERNS 

• Umholtz – Tree Ordinance and replanting trees as a part of that.  

• Olsen – Likes being on the Planning Commission and seeing things are happening.  

• Woida – No comment 

• Johnson – Happy about the land use project and commented on short term rental analysis.  

• Winchester – No comment 

• Hassell – Code enforcement officer, suggestion for city code for blocking traffic for 

highway.  

 

STAFF COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

• Tree Ordinance Discussion – Fregonese will be come with proposal in the next few 

meetings.  

• Update on the Dune Mitigation on Washington recently completed.  

• Next month - Front yard setback variance (V 23-01) public hearing.  

 

ADJOURNMENT   Closed the meeting at 5:30, Umholtz made a motion, seconded by Woida. 

 
Position #1 - Zandra Umholtz: Motion 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: 2nd  

Position #3 - Pat Olson: Approve 

Position #1 - Mary McGinnis: Approve 

Position #7 - Georgeanne Zedrick: Absent 

Position #5 - Bill Hassell: Approve 

Position #1 - Zandra  Umholtz: Approve 

Position #2 - Stehpanie  Winchester : Approve 

Position #4 - Sandra Johnson: Approve 

Position #6 - Kristina Woida: Approve 

 

PAGE 3

avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@00:51:11
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57
avca:5fb30857-0a9b-435c-821f-b85aab2cefe1@01:05:57


 
1968 

STAFF REPORT        CASE FILE: #VAR-23-01 

         DATE FILED: 11/23/22 

         HEARING DATE: 1/19/23 

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

 

APPLICANT: Gisela Patterson 

 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a variance for a reduction to the required front yard setback for the addition of 
manufactured home located at 1026 S Harbor St.  The lot is located off Washington St. and south on Harbor St., it is 
located in the RMD Zone and is approx. 5,400 sq ft.  The RMD setbacks for lots over 5,000 sq ft for the front yard is 15 ft 
from the property lot line.  The applicant is requesting to reduce the front yard setback from 15 feet to 10 feet in order 
to be in compliance with maintaining a 15 foot setback from a creek which runs on the north side of the property. (See 
site plan).   
 

A. REPORT OF FACTS 

1.) PROPERTY LOCATION:  The property is located at 1026 S Harbor in Rockaway Beach and is further identified 

on Tillamook County Assessor’s Map #1N1005 CA Lot 3116.  There was a 1968 Manufactured house on the 

lot that was demolished/removed last year. That permit was approved by the City on 10/24/2022.   

2.) LOT SIZE: approximately 5,400 square feet 

3.) ZONING DESIGNATION: RMD (Residential Manufactured Dwelling Zoning). 

4.) SURROUNDING LAND USE: The subject property is adjacent to existing single-family dwellings on the north 

and south sides.  

5.) EXISTING STRUCTURES: The lot is currently vacant.  

6.) UTILITIES: The following utilities serve the subject property: 

a. Sewer: City of Rockaway Beach 

b. Water: City of Rockaway Beach 

c. Electricity: Tillamook County P.U.D. 

7.) DEVELOPMENT CONSTRAINTS:  The property has a creek running through it and under Section 4.150. 

Riparian Vegetation, Riparian vegetation adjacent to the lakes and streams in Rockaway Beach shall be 

protected in accordance with the following provisions - Fifteen feet on either side of McMillan, Steinhilber, 

Finney, Rock, Heitmiller, Saltair, and Spring Creeks and any other known stream bed. [Amended by 

Ordinance No. 95-325A, May 10, 1995.] 

 

B. EVALUATION OF THE REQUEST 

1.) GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL: The applicants are requesting to place a new manufactured 

home on the lot and in order to maintain the 15 feet creek setback they need to push the home up in the 

front toward the west property line (Harbor St.)   

2.) BACKGROUND: There was a 1968 Manufactured house on the lot that was demolished/removed last year. 

That permit was approved by the City on 10/24/2022.   

3.) AGENCY COMMENTS:  

a. Merle J VanDyke (1038 S. Harbor St.) no objection. 

b. Michael J. Emert (1021 S Island St.) Opposed.  

4.) ORDINANCE STANDARDS: The following ordinance standards apply to this request. 

PAGE 4



 
 

 

 

 

Rockaway Beach Zoning Ordinance, Article 8. Variances. 

 

Section 8.010. Purpose 

 

1.) The purpose of a variance is to provide relief when a strict application of the zoning requirements would impose 

unusual practical difficulties or unnecessary physical hardships on the applicant. Practical difficulties and 

unnecessary hardships may result from the size, shape, or dimensions of a site, or the location of existing 

structures thereon; from geographic, topographic or other physical conditions on the site or in the immediate 

vicinity or from population densities, street location, or traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity. 

 

Although the purpose section of the variance provisions is not intended to be used as a criterion or standard to 

evaluate the request, it should be considered as a guide in the evaluation of the criteria as outlined below. 

 

Section 8.020. Criteria 

 (1)        Variances to a requirement of this chapter with respect to lot area and dimensions, setbacks, yard area, 

lot coverage, height of structures, vision clearance, fences and walls, and other quantitative requirements may 

be granted only if, on the basis of the application, investigation, and evidence submitted by the applicant, that 

all four expressly written findings are made:  

(a)        That a strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified requirement would result 

in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship and would be inconsistent with the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan; and  

(b)        That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not apply generally to other 

properties in the same zone; and  

(c)        That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare or 

materially injurious to properties or improvements in the near vicinity; and  

(d)        That the granting of the variance would support policies contained within the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

C. STAFF SUMMARY 

 

The applicant has addressed the criteria for a variance (see application and findings). 

 

D. CONCLUSION 

 

If, after hearing the evidence at the hearing, the planning commission agrees that sufficient facts exist to grant the 

variance, they should direct staff to write findings based on the evidence to permit the variance. If they do not find 

that sufficient evidence exists to allow the variance, they should direct staff to write findings for denial of the 

variance.   

 

PAGE 5



 
Applicant Location:  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE 6



PAGE 7



PAGE 8



PAGE 9



PAGE 10



BAY CITY ORDINANCES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 641 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE  
CUTTING OF TREES WITHIN THE  

CITY OF BAY CITY.  
 
 

THE CITY OF BAY CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Repeal.  Bay City Ordinance No. 470 which was 
codified as Bay City Ordinance 7-8 is hereby repealed.  
 
Section 2.  "Tree". A tree is defined as any woody plant having 
at least one well-defined stem more than 6 inches in diameter 
measured at a height of 4.5 feet above natural grade.  
 
Section 3.  Public Property.  No tree cutting of any kind shall 
occur in a public right of way or other property owned by the 
City of Bay City without obtaining prior written approval 
through the Tree Cutting Application process.  Further, no 
vegetation removal or activity which disturbs the soil shall be 
done in the public right of way or on public property by an 
individual or entity without prior written approval by the City.  
Maintenance of current vegetation, such as grass mowing, located 
in the public right of way is exempt from this prohibition.  
 
Section 4.  Private Property. Any person responsible for the 
cutting of any tree on private property must file a Tree Cutting 
Application with the City and obtain prior written approval 
through the Tree Cutting Application process. 
  
Section 5. Tree Cutting Permit.  Any person wanting to cut a 
tree on any public or private property within the City limits, 
shall submit a completed Tree Cutting Application to the City 
Recorder, with the following information:   

 
a. Landowner's name, address and signature.  
 
b. The Township, Range, Section and Tax Lot location of 

the trees to be cut.  
 
c. The legal description and street address, if 

applicable, of the property where the tree(s) are to be cut.  
 

Page 1 BAY CITY ORDINANCE 641 – TREE CUTTING ORDINANCE 
PAGE 11



d. The number and species of tree(s) to be cut, together 
with a map showing the location of the trees to be cut.  

 
e. The name and address of the person removing the 

tree(s).  
 
f. Proof of liability insurance by the person cutting the 

tree(s) of no less than $300,000.00.  
 
g. A statement of the proposed disposition of any bucked 

logs, stumps, or brush, and a reasonable time table 
for such disposition.  

 
h.   If the tree cutting is in certain areas within the 

City or on steep slopes, compliance with the following 
Ordinance provisions may be required as a condition of 
the Tree Cutting Permit approval: 

 
 1. Where located in the Hazards Overlay Zone, the 

information required by the Hazard Overlay Zone 
Ordinance. 

 
 2. Where subject the Grading and Erosion Control 

Ordinance, a Grading and Erosion Control Permit shall 
be required. 

  
 3. Where within a wetland, a wetland delineation 

report and survey may be required. 
 
 4. Where subject to a joint permit process, a joint 

permit from the Oregon Department of State Lands and 
US Army Corps of Engineers shall be obtained. 

 
Section 6.  Application Procedure.
 

1.   Upon receiving the application, the Bay City Recorder 
shall forward the application to the Bay City Public 
Works Superintendent. The Bay City Public Works 
Superintendent will review the permit, visit the site 
and may approve the permit consistent with applicable 
criteria unless Section 6.2 applies.  

 
2. If the tree(s) are located within a wetland, riparian 

area setback, an estuary or estuary zone, the Hazards 
Overlay Zone, or subject to a Grading and Erosion 
Control Permit, the Public Works Superintendent shall 

Page 2 BAY CITY ORDINANCE 641 – TREE CUTTING ORDINANCE 
PAGE 12



review the permit with the City Planner of Bay City to 
determine if additional permits may be required.  

 
Section 7.  Commercial Cutting.  Any person cutting trees for 
commercial purposes shall comply with the Oregon Forest 
Practices Act, and with Bay City Ordinance 255 for hauling of 
such trees, as may be applicable.  Any person cutting trees for 
commercial purposes shall also be required to file a Tree 
Cutting Application with the City Recorder and to obtain 
approval prior to cutting any tree.  
 
Section 8.  Hours of Cutting.  Any tree regulated under this 
ordinance shall only be cut during daylight hours or between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., whichever is shorter.  
 
Section 9.  Violation.  Any person found guilty of each 
violation of this ordinance shall be punishable as a Class B 
violation, as determined by the Tillamook County Justice Court, 
plus court costs.  
  
Section 10.  Dangerous Conditions.  No permit will be issued 
during extreme fire danger or under circumstances the City deems 
dangerous.  
 
Section 11.  Severability.  The provisions of this ordinance are 
severable. If any clause, section or provision of this ordinance 
shall be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason or 
cause, the remaining portions of this ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect and be valid.  
 
Section 12.  Savings Clause.  Ordinance No. 470, repealed by 
this ordinance, shall remain in force and effect for any action, 
violation, collection, prosecution, conviction or punishment of 
persons or proceedings that accrued before the effective date of 
this ordinance.  
 
 PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council this _13th day of 
____January__, 2009 and APPROVED by the Mayor this __13th_ day 
of ___January__, 2009.  
 
 
 
       /s/ Shaena E Peterson
       Shaena E. Peterson, Mayor 

Page 3 BAY CITY ORDINANCE 641 – TREE CUTTING ORDINANCE 
PAGE 13



 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_/s/Linda Dvorak_____ 
Linda Dvorak, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
First Reading:  October 14, 2008 
Second Reading: __January_______ 
Adoption:  __January 13, 2009____
 Ayes:  ____4_____ 
 Nayes:  ____1______ 
 Absentions: ____0______ 
 
  
 

Page 4 BAY CITY ORDINANCE 641 – TREE CUTTING ORDINANCE 
PAGE 14


	PC Meeting Agenda 1_19_23
	PC Meeting Minutes 12_15_22
	Staff Report Variance 23-01 Patterson
	V 23-01 Application
	V 23-01 Site Plan
	Bay City Tree Ord.



